CABINET

Minutes of the meeting held on 1 August 2013 at 7.00 pm in Council Chamber, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent.

Present: Councillor Clive Hart (Chairman); Councillors Everitt, Fenner,

D Green, Johnston and Poole

In Attendance: Councillors Bayford, Bruce, Edwards, King, Marson, Moores,

H Scobie, Watkins, Wells and S Hart

86. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies received at the meeting.

87. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

88. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed and signed by the Chairman.

89. SUNDRY DEBT WRITE OFF - OVER £20K

Cabinet was concerned that the terms of the tourism grant paid to Rumpy Steak Bars Ltd and Fort Lodge Hotel in 2001 and 2002 were breached and Council has been unable to enforce successful collection of this grant payment. It was noted that changes made to debt recovery procedures had resulted in the EK Services Sundry Debt Recovery Team recently receiving substantial audit assurance.

Councillor Everitt proposed, Councillor Johnston seconded and Members agreed to task the legal officer to refer the matter to Kent Police for further investigation.

90. BUDGET OUTTURN REPORT 2012/13

Significant effort had been made by Council to deliver savings in the period under review. As a result some under-spend had been achieved. The General Fund remained in good shape at £2.177million; which was in line with the recommended level agreed as part of the budgeting process.

Councillor Wells spoke under Council Procedure Rule 24.1

Councillor Everitt proposed, Councillor C. Hart seconded and Members agreed the following:

- 1. To note the General Fund, HRA and capital outturn position for 2012/13;
- 2. To approve the proposed movements to earmarked reserves as outlined in paragraphs (a) and (b) of the report as detailed below:
 - a) The under-spend of £2.1m has enabled a number of movements to and from earmarked reserves to be proposed as per the table overleaf.

Revenue Appropriations

	£000's
Insurance Risk Management	35
Capital Projects	385
Local Development Framework	(11)
General Fund Repairs	41
Slippage Fund – General Fund	(432)
- Harbour	5
Slippage Fund – HRA	59
Information Technology	101
Environmental Action Plan	(17)
Housing and Planning Delivery Grant	(46)
Cremator & Cemeteries Works	(34)
Decriminalisation	144
Priority Improvement	(344)
Customer Services	497
Unringfenced Grant	(296)
Waste Reserve	314
Council Election	32
Homelessness	53
Renewal Reserve	4 (50)
Performance Reward Grant	(50)
Maritime Reserve	20
VAT Reserve	19
East Kent Services	462
New Homes Bonus	348
Housing Intervention	432
Pay and Reward	380
	2,101

b) In accordance with statutory requirements, the Council has to make a depreciation charge within the HRA to reflect the use of the HRA assets over their useful lives. Within the old Housing Subsidy System the Council received a Major Repairs Allowance which was considered to be an appropriate measure of depreciation for the HRA assets.

Now that the Housing Subsidy System has come to an end there is no longer an actual Major Repairs Allowance paid to the Council, however, for the next five years the Council is allowed to continue to use the Major Repairs Allowance figure, as detailed in the HRA self-financing settlement, as a proxy for depreciation. As part of the final accounts an actual depreciation charge has been calculated on the HRA assets.

The difference of £1.17m between the actual charge and the Major Repairs Allowance settlement figure has been transferred to the Major Repairs Reserve in accordance with accounting guidance and will be used to support the maintenance and capital works to the existing housing stock.

91. ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 2012/13

The Council was required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities together with the actual

prudential and treasury indicators for 2012/13. Consideration of this report by Cabinet ensured that Council met the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).

Councillor Everitt proposed, Councillor C. Hart seconded and Members agreed the following:

- 1. To approve the actual 2012/13 prudential and treasury indicators in this report;
- 2. To approve the annual treasury management report for 2012/13;
- 3. To recommend this report to Council.

92. BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2013/14

The Budget Monitoring Report informed Cabinet about the up to date budget monitoring position in relation to the General Fund, Housing Revenue Account and capital programme for 2013/14. Budget gaps had been addressed during the period under review. The capital programme was currently being reviewed.

Councillor Everitt proposed, Councillor C. Hart seconded and Members agreed the following:

- 1. To note the projected outturn position for 2013/14 for the General Fund;
- 2. That Cabinet notes the current Housing Revenue Account position;
- 3. To note the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account Capital Programmes;
- 4. That £100k be drawn down from the Major Repairs Reserve to fund capital works to 3 listed buildings within the HRA;
- 5. That £100k be utilised from reserves to fund the purchase of a Buy Back Scheme, to be administered as per annex 4 of the report;
- 6. To recommend to Constitutional Review Working Party a revision of Financial Procedure Rules which requires the reporting of aged debts over £150,000 to Council.

93. COUNCIL REFERRAL OF PETITION TO CABINET - PLEASURAMA SITE

On 11 July 2013 Council considered a petition containing 1056 signatures that had been received from the Friends of Ramsgate Seafront. The petition was then referred to Cabinet without debate.

Councillor Bayford spoke under Council Procedure Rule 24.1

Councillor Poole proposed, Councillor C. Hart seconded and Members agreed the following:

That due to legal considerations Cabinet cannot agree to a request to rule out any
extension to the practical completion date for the Royal Sands development, but
seeks for the matter to be considered by the Pleasurama Site Development Review
Task and Finish Group and form part of the final recommendations from Overview
and Scrutiny Panel.

94. REPRESENTATION ON ADDITIONAL LIST OF EXECUTIVE APPOINTED OUTSIDE BODIES

Council agreed the additional list of Executive Appointed Outside Bodies at its meeting on 11 July 2013. The Leader proposed nominations for Council representatives to sit on these Bodies for 2013/14.

Councillor Marson spoke under Council Procedure Rule 24.1.

Cabinet agreed list of nominations to the Executive-related outside bodies as shown at below:

Name of Outside Body	No. of Reps	Nomination
Domestic Violence Forum	1	Councillor Johnston
Local Government Association (LGA)	1	Councillor Poole
Coastal Special Interest Group		
Thanet Quality Bus Partnership	1	Councillor D. Green

95. DREAMLAND - GENERAL VESTING DECLARATION

There was a shared view by Cabinet regarding the aspiration to witness the return of Dreamland as part of Margate's heritage and realise its contribution to the wider regeneration of Thanet. The making of a General Vesting Declaration would result in the transfer of the Dreamland site to Thanet District Council.

Councillor Bayford spoke under Council Procedure Rule 24.1

Councillor C. Hart proposed, Councillor Johnston seconded and Members approved the making of the General Vesting Declaration which will result in the transfer of the Dreamland site to Thanet District Council.

Meeting concluded: 7.35 pm